Environmental Response Management Application (ERMA)

Basic User's Guide

Version 2 May 19, 2016



Contents

Introduction	
What Is ERMA?	3
What You'll Find in This User Guide	3
ERMA Basics	4
ERMA's Origin: A Regional Focus	4
Making ERMA Go: The Technology that Powers ERMA	4
Getting Started	6
Getting an ERMA Account	6
Recovering Your Password	9
Recovering Your Username	9
Logging In and Out	
Using the ERMA Window	11
Map Controls	
Map Toolbar	
Search Box	
Time Slider	
Tool Tabs and Table of Contents	
Folder/Layer Shortcut Menu	
Bookmark Views Control	
Display Controls	
Мар Кеу	
Layers Tab: Working with Bookmark Views	21
Bookmark Views	
Creating and Saving Bookmark Views	
Working with Bookmark views	
Loading a Bookmark View	
Editing an Existing Bookmark View	
Deleting an Existing Bookmark View	
Using Playlists	
Creating a Playlist	
Changing the Playlist Running Order	

Clearing a Slideshow	32
Legend Tab	34
Query Tools Tab	35
Creating and Deleting Polygons	35
Creating a Polygon	35
Deleting Polygons	36
Using Polygons to View and Analyze Data	37
ERMA Layer Query by Polygon Tool	37
NOAA Environmental Sensitivity Index (ESI) Tool	40
U.S. Fish and Wildlife Service Information, Planning, and Conservation (IPaC) Tool	42
Draw Tab	44
Draw Tab Overview	44
Creating a New Drawing	46
Editing a Drawing	50
Adding a Drawing to the TOC	53
Zoom Tab	58
Zooming By Latitude and Longitude (Lat/Lon)	58
Zooming By Place Name (Place)	59
Zooming By Ship Number (Ship MMSI) or Ship Name	59
Download Tab	63
Print Tab	64

INTRODUCTION

What Is ERMA?

The Environmental Response Management Application (ERMA®) is a web-based geographic information system (GIS) tool that helps emergency responders and environmental resource managers deal with incidents that may adversely impact the environment. ERMA combines real-time and static data to display a single interactive map that makes it easy for users to visualize a situation.

Because ERMA is web-based, users do not have to download any proprietary software onto their computers. It also offers the following advantages:

- It facilitates the integration and synthesis of various types of information.
- It provides a common operational picture to all individuals involved in a response.
- It improves communication and coordination among responders and stakeholders.

ERMA gives resource managers the information they need to make informed decisions when dealing with an incident. The maps it generates are worth the proverbial "thousand words" when communicating the status of response activities.

What You'll Find in This User Guide

This guide gives an overview of how ERMA works, and then describes how to use the various parts of ERMA's user interface. Some of the functions described are available only to ERMA users with accounts or are restricted to users who have certain privilege levels.

The guide contains these sections:

- "<u>ERMA Basics</u>" gives an overview of ERMA, including a brief history of the system's origins and a discussion of ERMA's software architecture.
- "<u>Getting Started</u>" tells how to get an ERMA account, how to log in to ERMA, and describes how to use the different parts of the ERMA window.
- "Layers Tab: Working with Bookmark Views" gives an overview of how Bookmark Views work, and provides procedures for creating, saving, loading, editing, and deleting them. It also describes how to create playlists that display Bookmark Views in a specified order.
- "Legend Tab" explains how to interpret the symbols displayed on the ERMA window.
- "<u>Draw Tab</u>" explains how to draw points, lines, and polygons on the map to create drawings that you can share with other ERMA users.
- "Query Tools Tab" describes how to create and edit polygons that you can use to analyze the data available for an area. It also explains how to access data in the NOAA Environmental Sensitivity Index (ESI) maps and in the U.S. Fish and Wildlife Service Information, Planning, and Conservation Tool (IPaC).
- "Zoom Tab" describes the tools you can use to zoom in on specific map locations.
- "<u>Download Tab</u>" explains how to save ERMA data to your computer.
- "<u>Print Tab</u>" describes how to print maps displayed by ERMA.

ERMA BASICS

ERMA is an online mapping tool offering comprehensive access to localized environmental response information. ERMA integrates both static and real-time data, such as Environmental Sensitivity Index (ESI) maps, ship locations, weather, and ocean currents, in a centralized format. It provides environmental responders and decision-makers with access to data for environmental planning, response, assessment, restoration, and incident drills, as well as for other incidents and natural disasters. The system incorporates data into a fast, user-friendly geographic information system (GIS) that can be accessed by command post staff, by active field and remote support teams, and by decision makers and other incident and restoration staff at a variety of locations.

ERMA was developed by the National Oceanic and Atmospheric Administration (NOAA) and the University of New Hampshire with the Environmental Protection Agency, U.S. Coast Guard, and the Department of the Interior in a cross-agency effort.

ERMA's Origin: A Regional Focus

ERMA projects are focused on specific regions. Currently, ERMA projects exist or are in development for the Gulf of Mexico, the Atlantic, New England, the Pacific Islands, the Pacific Northwest, the Southwest, the Arctic, the Caribbean, and the Great Lakes.

The ERMA pilot was developed for Portsmouth Harbor, New Hampshire. This area was chosen for its proximity to the University of New Hampshire and because of its diverse shoreline development, which includes industrial and residential areas, protected habitats, and tourist/recreational use. Another important reason for selecting Portsmouth Harbor was the active partnership between response agencies, industry, and nongovernmental organizations in New Hampshire and Maine. As a result of these partnerships, existing spatial information (including environmental datasets, habitat classifications and species distributions, navigational charts, high resolution bathymetry, meteorological observations, and trajectory and forecast models) was leveraged to create a response-driven, web-based GIS data management and analysis tool—ERMA. The pilot was tested during area response drills, where it proved effective at providing data transparency while maintaining ease of operation by multiple users.

Making ERMA Go: The Technology that Powers ERMA

ERMA is an integrated data management system that incorporates static base layers along with realtime streams of data (such as weather, tides, and ship tracking data) into a fast, user-friendly Geographic Information System (GIS) that is accessible to the command post as well as people in the field and other locations. ERMA enables a user to quickly and securely upload, manipulate, export, and display spatially referenced datasets, producing a high-impact and fine-resolution visualization of integrated data that can be used to solve complex environmental response and resource issues.

ERMA is designed to store, query, and display spatially referenced data for solving complex questions. The application is based on open source software (PostgreSQL/PostGIS, MapServer, and

OpenLayers), which ensures compatibility with other commercial and open source GIS applications. By overlaying diverse spatial datasets, the user can see the full spectrum of an incident including potential interactions (oil trajectory and resources at risk, for example). ERMA operates in the Federal Information Security Management Act (FISMA) Amazon Cloud, which allows the application to scale as needed for big and small events. The illustration below shows ERMA's basic software architecture and data flows.



GETTING STARTED

Getting an ERMA Account

ERMA can be used by all to view publically-accessible data. To access non-public data, ERMA users are required to have an ERMA account.

To get a new ERMA account:

1. On the ERMA home page, click the **Login** command in the upper-right corner of the screen.

11	Login
Layers Legend Query Tools Zoom Download Print	
clear all collapse all	
Background Layers	
Google	<u> </u>

2. When the Login window appears, click **Request Account**. A new browser window opens.

Login	
username	
password	
> request ac	ount recover username/password

3. Enter the requested information. While the information you need to provide for many of the fields are self-explanatory, you'll find more details about some of fields below the illustration.

IMPORTANT: You must provide information for all fields that are marked 'Required.'

First Name	req	uired
Middle Name		
Last Name	req	uired
Phone	req	uired
Email Address	req	uired Work email address required (not personal)
Affilitation	affiliation •	uired
Agency Represented	req	uired Major government agency or company represented.
Company (if y above)	es	
above)		
NOAA OR&R Sponsor*	req	uired
Incident Command Post (if applicable)		
Office Location (City, State)	req	uired
Notes		
Notes		1

- **Email Address**: Enter a work email address that includes a domain name (the part that comes after the @ symbol. Personal email accounts (such as a Google Mail or Hotmail account) are not acceptable.
- **Affiliation**: Open the drop-down list and select the type of organization that you are affiliated with. If none of the listed categories fit your organization, select **Other**.
- **Agency Represented**: Enter the name of your organization.
- **Contractor**: If you work for your organization on a contract basis, select **Yes**. Otherwise, select **No**.
- **Company**: If you are a contractor, enter the name of the contracting company that you work for.
- **NOAA OR&R Sponsor**: Enter the name of the NOAA Office of Response & Restoration representative who suggested that you use ERMA.
- **Incident Command Post**: If you are part of an active response, enter the name of your incident command post.
- **Office Location**: Enter the location of your incident command post or, if you are not part of an active response, the home city of your organization.
- **Notes:** Enter any additional information that would be pertinent to the creation of your NOAA account.

4. Click **Submit**. Once your request has been processed, you will receive an automated email message containing your ERMA user name and instructions on how to set your password. The message normally arrives within one business day.

Requests for ERMA accounts are processed by the account management team during regular business hours (Monday through Friday from 8 A.M. to 5 P.M. PT). Processing will be more frequent during a drill or incident. Once your account has been processed you will receive an email from the account management team about accessing ERMA, how to find basic information, names of the regional leads, and basic documentation.

Setting Up Passwords and Account Maintenance

Your password and user account is an important part of keeping ERMA secure. There are NOAA security guidelines to follow for password creation and user account management, including the following password requirements:



- Every 90 days, your password will expire. When you login, you will be prompted with a message notifying you to reset your password. You may change or reset your password before then by clicking the "Change Password" function at the top right of the page.
- If you have not logged into ERMA for 6 months, your account will expire. Before this happens you will receive an automated email 2 weeks in advance notifying you of this occurrence and to log in again. You will also be required to create a new password.
- If you have not logged into ERMA longer than 6 months and your account is expired, when you try to log in a notice will appear to contact the <u>orr.ermaaccounts@noaa.gov</u> email. Your account will be reviewed and reactivated based on information provided.

Recovering Your Password

To recover your password if you forget or lose it:

- 1. On the ERMA home page, click the **Login** command (located in the upper-right corner of the screen).
- 2. When the Login window appears, click **Recover Username/Password**.

Login			
username			
password			K
reques	t account r	ecover usernam	e/password

3. When the Password Recovery window appears, type your email address (the same address you used when you initially requested your account) in the field provided.

Request Password Re	eset Change (or Set) Password	
Reset Password		
E-Mail Address	E-Mail Address	
	Submit	

4. Click **Submit**. An automated email will be sent instructing you to create a new password.

Recovering Your Username

To recover your username if you forget or lose it:

- 1. On the ERMA home page, click the **Login** command (located in the upper-right corner of the screen).
- 2. When the Login window appears, click **Recover Username/Password**.

Login		
username		
password		K
reques	t account recover username	e/password

3. When the Username/Password Recovery window appears, type your email address (the same address you used when you initially requested your account) in the field provided.

Request Password Res	set Change (or Set) Password
Recover Username	E-Mail Address
	Submit

4. Click **Submit**. An automated email will be sent containing your username information.

Logging In and Out

To log in to ERMA:

1. On the ERMA home page, click **Login** in the upper-right corner of the screen.



- 2. When the Login window appears, enter your username and password.
- 3. Read the terms of use detailed in the scrolling box, and once you have checked the box "I Agree", Click **OK**. A message will tell you that your login was successful.
- 4. Once you are in ERMA you will see a Table of Contents to your right containing data layers and additional tools and tabs made available to those who hold ERMA accounts. Users who have access to multiple Regional ERMA sites can go to them without logging in again.

To log out of ERMA:

Click **Logout** in the upper-right corner of the ERMA window. All restricted folders and layers disappear, and a message tells you that the logout was successful.

NOTE: If your ERMA window has been inactive for 12 hours, you will be automatically logged out.

USING THE ERMA WINDOW

ERMA data is accessed and displayed using the ERMA window. The elements of this window are shown in the illustration below.



The rest of this section describes these elements, starting with the Map Controls and working around the window clockwise. The exceptions are the Navigation Tabs (explained in separate sections below) and the **Login/Logout** button (described in the previous section).

The upper-left corner of the ERMA window contains several tabs. The particular ones that you see depend on your privileges. (The **Information** tab, **Help** tab, and **Recent Data** tab are always available.)



- The **Information** tab opens a window containing general and design information about ERMA.
- The **Help** tab opens a window containing basic information about using ERMA, including the use of the Map Toolbar and Navigation tabs.
- The **Recent Data** tab opens a window containing links to data that's been uploaded recently. Only the layers that you have the needed privileges to view will be visible.

Note: The number of links available and the age of data considered "recent" depend on which ERMA site you are using.

- The **Admin** tab opens a menu of administrative commands. You'll see this tab only if you are an administrative user with the appropriate privileges. Admin options may vary based on user privileges.
- The Upload tab opens a window that allows you to upload new shapefiles to ERMA (if you are a Data Uploader with the necessary privileges). For more information on this process, see "Uploading a Shapefile Layer" on page 21.
- The **Incident** tab opens up in place of the TOC to instruct users how to create a New Incident.

Map Controls

The Map Controls are located in the upper-left corner of the map. It contains the following controls.

Navigation Control

Allows you to move the entire map north, south, east, or west.

To move the map, click the compass point for the desired direction (north, south, east, or west). Keep clicking until the map is where you want it. You can see the latitude and longitude of the new map center in the Map Key at the bottom of the ERMA window.

Zoom Level Control



Allows you to zoom in and out of the map to increase or decrease the zoom level, showing more or less detail.

To zoom, click the plus or minus sign on the Zoom Level Control until you've reached the desired zoom level. You can see the new zoom level and map scale in the Map Key at the bottom of the ERMA window.

Map Toolbar

The Map Toolbar is located just to the right of the Map Controls. It contains the following controls and tools.

*	<i>Pan Tool</i> Allows you to reposition the map by clicking on a spot and dragging the map. To reposition, select the Pan Tool icon and then click a spot on the map. Hold down your mouse button and drag the map until you have the view that you want. (This tool is selected by default.)
Ŧ	 Magnifier Tool Allows you to re-center the map on any desired point and then zoom in on that spot. To re-center, click the Magnifier Tool icon and then click anywhere on the map. Each successive click zooms in on the map's new center. To zoom in on a specific area, click the Magnifier Tool icon and then use your mouse pointer to draw a box around the area of interest. When you release the mouse button, ERMA zooms the map in on the area you selected. You can see the zoom level, map scale, and the latitude and longitude of the map's new center in the Map Key at the bottom of the ERMA window.
4	<i>Previous Extent</i> Allows <i>you to</i> zoom the map to the previous extent. Click the icon to switch to the previous map extent without changing any of the currently selected layers. If the icon is gray, there is no map extent saved.
٩	Next Extent Allows you to zoom the map to the next extent. Click the icon to restore the next map extent without changing any of the currently selected layers. If the icon is gray, there is no map extent saved.

and a	Measurement Line Allows you to draw a line on the map to measure distances. To draw a line, click the Measurement Line icon and then click the point on the map where you want the line to start. If you single-click at another point, you can continue the line in another direction. Double-click when you want to end the line. You can see a running total of the line's length in the Map Key at the bottom of the ERMA window. (If you click on the number, you can cycle through various units of measure.)
	Measurement Polygon Allows you to draw a polygon on the map to measure areas. To draw a polygon, click the Measurement Polygon icon and then click a point on the map. Move the mouse pointer until you reach the first vertex of the polygon and click again. You can now move the pointer in another direction to create the next side of the polygon. Repeat this process until you've enclosed the desired area, and then double-click on the final vertex to complete the polygon. You can see the area enclosed by the polygon in the Map Key at the bottom of the ERMA window. (If you click on the number, you can cycle through various units of measure.)
i	<i>Identify Tool</i> Allows you to select a point on the map and see attribute information for the layers that are turned on at that particular location. To see the attribute information, turn on one or more layers. Click the Identify Tool icon and then click the desired point on the map. Attribute information will appear in a pop-up window.

Search Box

The Search Box is located at the top-center of the ERMA window.

A Environmental Response Management Gulf of Mexico	- Geographic
Help Recent Data Admin Upload Incident	Search Layers, Folders, and Bookmarks
	Madison Milwaukee Grand R

This tool is useful when you want to search for layers, folders, bookmarks, or geographic locations of interest without having to look through multiple folders. Instead, you can enter a word or phrase (which must contain at least three characters) into the Search Box and generate a list of results consisting all of the layers, folders, or bookmarks that have your search term in their names. If you would like to search by locational geography or latitude/longitude, check the "Geographic Search" box and type in the location in the search box. A drop-down list of locations will be displayed.

To use the Search Box to find information in ERMA:

1. Type the word or phrase that you are interested in. A list of relevant folders, layers, and bookmarks appears in a drop-down list.



2. You can now select items starting with any of the following:



- Activate layer: When selected, the layer is activated, and the data it contains is available for analysis on the map.
- **Show Bookmark**: When selected, a pre-selected group of layers (called a Bookmark View) is displayed on the map.
- **Expand folder**: When selected, the folder is expanded on the Table of Contents, which allows you to look through the folder for other layers that may be helpful.

Time Slider

The Time Slider player appears at the bottom-right, next to the TOC when time is turned on for a layer.



- Date / Time displayed above the player is what is currently displayed
 If you hover mouse over it, you see what timezone its in and in UTC
- Date / Time at the bottom of the player is what the start and end of the data currently displayed

This tool is useful when you want to see data over a time span.

To use the Time Slider in ERMA:

- 1. In your layer TOC, you should see a clock icon (^(I)) next to certain layer(s).
- 2. To activate the Time Slider player, turn on the layer, and then click on the clock icon.

~4	<i>Previous Time Step</i> Allows you to go through the previous time steps
► Or	<i>Play or Pause</i> Allows you to play the time slider or pause at a desired time.
▶>	<i>Next Time Step</i> Allows you to go through the next time steps
। Or ¢	<i>Stop or Loop</i> Allows you to stop the time slider at the end or you can continue to the play the time slider from the beginning to the end.
*	<i>Time Slider Settings</i> Allows you to select setting options for the Time Slider
?	<i>Time Slider Help</i> Help text that further explains the time slider settings options

Tool Tabs and Table of Contents

The Tool Tabs and Table of Contents (TOC) sit on the right side of the ERMA window. The TOC is accessible via the "Layers" Tab. The rest of the tabs in this part of the ERMA window display panels for tools that let you create, manage, and analyze ERMA data. Access to these tools is controlled by the Tool Tabs, which are located at the top of the TOC, just below and to the right of the Find Box and below the Login/Logout button.

					Ch	ande Pass	word L	oaou
4	Layers	Legend	Draw	Query Tools				

These tools are available on the Table of Contents:

• Layers tab.

Allows you to view, create, and manage the layers of information that can be displayed on the map. This tab also allows you to create Bookmark Views and (if you have the needed permissions) share Bookmark Views with other users. For more information, see "Layers Tab: Creating, Editing, and Deleting Layers" on page **Error! Bookmark not defined.**.

• Legend tab.

Helps you interpret the symbology used in the layers displayed on the map. Legend information is automatically generated or updated each time new or different layers are selected for display. For more information, see "Legend Tab" on page 34.

• Query Tools tab.

Allows you to create and edit polygons on the map and then analyze the data available for that area. It also allows you to access data in the NOAA Environmental Sensitivity Index (ESI) maps and in the U.S. Fish and Wildlife Service Information Planning and Conservation Tool (IPAC). For more information, see "<u>Query Tools Tab</u>" on page 35.

• Draw tab. (Available only to users with the required privileges.)

Allows you to draw points, lines, and polygons on the map to create a drawing that you can share with other ERMA users. For more information, see "<u>Draw Tab</u>" on page **Error! Bookmark not defined.**.

• Zoom tab.

Allows you to zoom in on a particular location by latitude and longitude; by the place name; by ship identification number or ship name. For more information, see "Zoom Tab" on page 58.

• Download tab.

Allows you to download certain types of ERMA shapefile information to your computer. For more information, see "<u>Download Tab</u>" on page 63.

• Print tab.

Allows you to print a copy of the map displayed in the ERMA window. For more information, see "<u>Print Tab</u>" on page 64.

Folder/Layer Shortcut Menu

This shortcut menu appears when you right-click on the name of a selected layer or folder. It allows you to perform specific operations on that layer or folder, such as zooming to the layer's extent, viewing the attribute table data, or displaying metadata. The active commands on this menu vary from layer to layer and folder to folder.

View Attribute Table Data

Right click on a layer to open the shortcut menu, then click on **View Data** to open its attribute table.





Bookmark Views Control

The Bookmark Views control is at the bottom of the **Layers** tab on the Table of Contents. Use this control to open the Bookmark Views panel and create a new Bookmark View.

BOEM Lease Blocks 📆 👰	
DOEW LEase DIOCKS (Laber)
Bookmark Views: new	Expand 🔺 🔻
	(clean) >
	Coastal Response Research Center ©2007 - 2015 University of New Hampshire

new	<i>New</i> Opens the Save a View panel, which allows you to create a new Bookmark View (including the selection of the Base Views and folders/layers that the new view will include).	
Expand 🛕 Hide 💙	<i>Expand/Hide</i> Opens and closes the Bookmark Views panel.	

Display Controls

The Display Controls are two buttons located in lower-right corner of the ERMA window.



clean	<i>Clean</i> Allows you to make most of the controls, tabs, and buttons on the ERMA map invisible. (Only the Map Key and the tab you are currently using stay visible.) This is especially useful when taking screen shots or preparing a map for a presentation. To restore the hidden elements, click anywhere on the ERMA window.
>)	<i>Hide/Display TOC</i> Toggles the display of the Navigation tabs and Table of Contents (TOC) and expands the map to fill the full ERMA window.

Map Key

The Map Key is located in the lower-left portion of the map in the ERMA window.

Y			The second second	
	100 km 50 mi		- August	
tΝ	Scale: 1: 3M	Zoom Level: 7	Location: 29.21136°,-95.3361	17°

The Map Key has the following elements:

- A *graphic scale* showing how many feet/miles or meters/kilometers are represented by a set length on the map.
- A north arrow pointing to the map's northerly direction.
- *Scale*: A fractional scale showing the ratio between a set length on the map and the real-world distance that this length represents. In the illustration above, one unit on the map represents 2 million units in the real world.
- *Zoom Level*: The zoom level for the current map display, as set on the Zoom Level control. Levels range from 0 (zoomed out to show the full map) to 19 (zoomed in as far as possible).
- *Location*: The location indicated by the mouse pointer, to an accuracy of 1/100000 of a degree.
- *Measurement:* After using the measurement tool to draw a polygon or line, the measurement units will be seen at the bottom of the window in blue font. Click on the measurement number to cycle through different units of measure (such as: metric, standard, and nautical).

Except for the north arrow, all of these elements update automatically to reflect changes in the zoom level or movement of the mouse pointer.

LAYERS TAB: WORKING WITH BOOKMARK VIEWS

ERMA's Bookmark View function allows you to create and save views that provide you with real-time updating for a specific event or a particular interest. By creating Bookmark Views, you avoid having to assemble new sets of layers each time you want a particular view of ERMA's data. If you have the needed access permissions, you can also share your views with other users.

You can also subscribe to Base Views. Base Views are bookmarks, created by others, that are typically relevant to a high-priority incident or area, such as pertinent operations information gathered during an incident response.

This section gives an overview of ERMA's Bookmark Views, including instructions on how to create and save a Bookmark View and on how to use Bookmark Views to create your personal ERMA default view. It also tells how to set up a playlist that displays Bookmark Views automatically in a specified sequence.

Bookmark Views

Click the **Expand** button on the **Bookmark Views** control at the bottom of the tab (below left), to open the Bookmark Views panel. Any Bookmark View that you create is shown under *My Views* at the top of the list (below right), while the rest of the panel displays a list of shared views.



To close the Bookmark Views panel, click the Hide button on the Bookmark Views control.

Creating and Saving Bookmark Views

This "on-the-fly" method can be useful when you realize that the current map view is one that you'd like to be able to use again later.

To create and save a new Bookmark View from the current map view:

- 1. On the **Layers** tab, click the **Expand** button on the **Bookmark Views** control at the bottom of the tab.
- 2. When the Bookmark Views panel appears, click the **New** button and the **Save a View** panel opens.

Bookmark Views new	Hide 🖤
My Views	
Shared Views	
Atlantic ERMA Area of Interest Weather (real-time)	
default	
⊕ Delaware Bay	
Hudson River ■	
Hurricane Sandy	
🗄 Raritan River	
play slideshow at 30 sec interval	
Layers Legend Draw Query Tools Zoom Download Pri	int
Save a View	
» Edit View Information	
name	
Use > to denote folders. For example:	
Some Spill > 2011 Views > Fish.	
description	
If defined, the view description will appear in a pop up window when selecti	ing the view.
(HTML allowed)	
set as my default view	
This will allow this view to be the default view when you login.	
share	
Allow other users that have permission to view all the enabled layers to loa	d this view.
Subscribe to Base Views	
Select Folders/Layers	
cancel save	
	clean >

Hint: If you right-click on a folder's name before you click **New**, the folder name will be automatically populated in the **Name** field on the **Save a View** panel. For example, if you right-click on Environmental Unit and then click **Save Current View**, the text Environmental Unit > appears in the **Name** field.

3. If there is no name in the **Name** field already, enter a name for the new Bookmark View. This name should be descriptive and should help you (and other users, if you share the view) know what the Bookmark View shows on the map.

By default, the new Bookmark View will be put into the root level of the list. If you want the view to go into a folder, use a > character to indicate each folder level. For example:

Some Spill> 2012 Views> Fish

IMPORTANT: Make sure to put a space after the > character.

- 4. In the **Description** field, enter a more detailed description of the Bookmark View. It's a good idea to list the layers and views included in the new Bookmark View, and to give other users an idea of why you think these layers and views should be seen together.
- 5. If you want the new Bookmark View to be loaded automatically when you log in to ERMA, select the **Set as my default view** check box.
- 6. If you want to share the new Bookmark View with other users, select the **Share** check box. All users who have the appropriate permissions will be able to use your Bookmark View.

NOTE: It not possible to save a bookmark in My Views and Shared Views at the same time. To save the bookmark in both places, you must save the book mark in both places.

7. Click the **Save** button at the bottom of the panel.

Working with Bookmark views

This section gives procedures for loading, editing, and deleting Bookmark Views.

Loading a Bookmark View

To load a Bookmark View:

1. On the **Layers** tab, click the **Expand** button on the **Bookmark Views** control at the bottom of the tab.



2. After the Bookmark Views panel opens, click on the name of the Bookmark View that you want to load. The map will update to show the data in that view.



Editing an Existing Bookmark View

NOTE: If the bookmark is not shared out, only the owner can edit it. If the bookmark is shared, only the owner and other users with the privileges to share bookmarks can edit it.

To edit a Bookmark View:

- 1. On the **Layers** tab, click the **Expand** button on the **Bookmark Views** control at the bottom of the tab.
- 2. After the Bookmark Views panel opens, click on the **bookmark** you'd like to edit. Then, on the **Active View** panel, located just above the **Bookmark Views** panel, click on the **Edit** button.



Hint: For a shortcut, right-click on the name of the Bookmark View that you want to edit. A pop-up menu appears. On the menu, click Edit View. The Save a View panel appears, displaying the current information for that Bookmark View.

Public Salety & Infrastructure	
Response Planning	
Restoration	-
Bookmark Views: new)	Hide 🖤
Shared Views	A
Command Briefing	
default	
Environmental Unit	
EPA RMP Facilities (with Chemical Warnings	Volume) w/ NOAA Watches &
Louisiana & Mississippi Mar	urrent view
Managed Wildlife Areas	
National Park Service Histo	
NOAA ESI Louisiana T&E edit vi	ew
NOAA Essential Fish Habita delete	view
NOAA & USFWS Critical H; add to	playlist
SCAT Rapid Assessment Post-Isaa	c as of 9/10/2012
Shellfish and Oyster Managed Area	s
Operations Section	
	(dean) >

3. Whichever method you use, clicking the **Edit** button or clicking **Edit View**, the next thing you should see is the **Save a View** panel. In the **Name** field of the **Save a View** panel, make any needed changes to the name of the Bookmark View. As with the original name, your new name should be descriptive, and help you (and other users, if you share the view) know what the Bookmark View shows on the map.

If you want the Bookmark View to go into a folder, use a > character to indicate each folder level. For example:

Some Spill> 2012 Views> Fish

IMPORTANT: Make sure to put a space after the > character.

Layers Legend Draw Query Tools Zoom Download Print
Save a View
» Edit View Information
name
Environmental Unit > Testing
Use > to denote folders. For example: Some Spill > 2011 Views > Fish.
description
If defined, the view description will appear in a pop up window when selecting the view. (HTML allowed)
set as my default view
This will allow this view to be the default view when you login.
share
Allow other users that have permission to view all the enabled layers to load this view.
Subscribe to Base Views
Select Folders/Layers
cancel save
(clean) (>)

- 4. In the **Description** field you can edit or add a description of the Bookmark View. It's a good idea to list the layers and views included in the Bookmark View and to give other users an idea of why you think these layers and views should be seen together.
- 5. If you want the Bookmark View to be loaded automatically when you log in to ERMA, select the **Set as my default view** check box. If you do not want it to be the default, make sure the check box is cleared.

Note: Only Bookmark Views in your **My Views** list can be edited to be your default view. If you want to make a **Shared View** your default view, save the **Shared View** as a new **My View**.

6. If you want other users to be able to use the new Bookmark View, select the **Shared** check box.

IMPORTANT: Only users who have the appropriate permissions can share Bookmark Views.

7. Click the **Subscribe to Base Views** control. The Subscribe to Base Views panel opens.

Subscribing to Base Views allows you to rely on bookmarks created by others which you won't need to maintain or update and can include in your own views. This is useful for a bookmark such as Response Operations created by another user where you'd want to constantly see all the current boom, vessels, or teams without updating it yourself. You could subscribe to this bookmark and build on it with your own shoreline data to keep tabs of how the shoreline might be impacted by operations or how it should be protected. Another example to subscribe to would be a bookmark of oceanographic data such as currents, tides, and wave heights.



8. Highlight each Base View that you want to edit your Bookmark View to include. These can include your own saved views or Bookmark views saved and shared by other users.

NOTE: If you choose to include Base Views, be aware that a shared view's owner might make changes to that view in the future, and that those changes will be reflected in the bookmark view that you create.

9. Click the **Select Folders/Layers** control (see above). The Select Folders/Layers panel appears.

Layers Legend Draw Query Tools Zoom Download Print
Save a View
Edit View Information
Subscribe to Base Views
» Select Folders/Layers
Select folders & layers to include in the view. Check all layers that should be turned on when loading the view. Highlight layers that should be included, but not turned on when loading the view.
clear all collapse all
Admin Boundaries & Reference Features
Environmental Quality & Monitoring
🖻 Marine Debris
Marine Debris Proposed Survey Areas
🐨 🗹 Marine Debris Completed Survey Areas 📟
Marine Debris Removal Completed
Marine Debris Locations
Imagery & Remote Sensing
In Natural Resources, Habitats, & Managed Areas
Navigation & Marine Infrastructure
Public Safety & Infrastructure
cancel save
(anter) (save)
(clean) (>)

- 10. Select the check box next to each layer that should be turned on when your new Bookmark View loads.
- 11. Highlight each layer or folder that should be included in the view, but not loaded.
- 12. Click the **Save** button at the bottom of the panel.

Deleting an Existing Bookmark View

Note: If the bookmark is not shared out, only the owner can delete it. If the bookmark is shared, only the owner and other users with the privileges to share bookmarks can delete it.

To delete a Bookmark View:

- 1. On the **Layers** tab, click the **Expand** button on the **Bookmark Views** control at the bottom of the tab.
- 2. After the Bookmark Views panel opens, right-click on the name of the Bookmark View that you want to delete. A pop-up menu appears.



3. On the menu, click **Delete View**. The Bookmark View that you selected is deleted.

Using Playlists

Bookmark Views can also be set up to display automatically in a specified sequence as a *playlist*. A playlist is very useful when you want ERMA to run on its own like a slide show. You can customize your playlist so that it plays all bookmarks or just specific bookmarks.

Creating a Playlist

To create a playlist:

- 1. On the **Layers** tab, click the **Expand** button on the **Bookmark Views** control at the bottom of the tab.
- 2. After the Bookmark Views panel opens, right-click on the name of the Bookmark View that you want to appear when your slideshow runs. A pop-up menu appears.



3. Click **Add to Playlist**. A number (in this case, 1) will appear to the right of the Bookmark View's name.



4. Repeat steps 2 and 3 for each bookmark you want to add to the playlist.

- 5. By default, Bookmark Views are displayed at 30-second intervals. If you want to make the interval longer or shorter, scroll to the bottom of the Bookmark Views panel and enter a new interval value.
- 6. To make the slideshow start playing, click the **Play Slideshow** button at the bottom of the panel.

Changing the Playlist Running Order

To change the running order of a playlist:

1. Click on the number next to a Bookmark View that's in the playlist. A field containing the existing number appears.



- 2. Enter a new number into the field. The order of the other Bookmark Views will update to reflect the change you just made.
- 3. Repeat step 1 and 2 until the playlist is in the order that you want.

Clearing a Slideshow

Since a slideshow can't be saved, an active slideshow is cleared automatically when you log out of ERMA. If you want to clear a playlist before then, follow the procedure below.

To clear a playlist:

1. Right-click in any empty spot in the Bookmark Views panel. A pop-up menu appears.

Bookmark Views: new	Hide	\mathbf{V}	
Shared Views			
Command Briefing			
default			
Environmental Unit			
Operations Section			
AIS Vessels, River Miles, & Nautical Chart	3		
HazMat & Oil Pollution Reports, Photos, & NGS Imagery 9-15-12			
HazMat & Oil Pollution Reports, Photos, & NGS Imagery 9-20-12	2	Ε	
Operational Divisions 9-13-12			
Planned & Completed Recon Operational Areas through 9-8-12	1		
Salvage-Source Control Casualty Cases 9-14-12 1430hrs			
Surface Task Force Path & Photos 9-20-12	4		
USCG Overflight Paths & Photos 9-13-12			
Situation Unit save current	nt view		
clear playlis	st	-	
play slideshow at 30 sec interval		Ŧ	
•	•	2	
	clean)	>)	

2. Click Clear Playlist

•

LEGEND TAB

The Legend explains the symbols used on the map to represent information. These colors and shapes help users to understand what they are seeing on the map.

Legend information is automatically generated or updated each time a layer is created or edited. Legend styles are populated from the styles that are set for a particular layer.



QUERY TOOLS TAB

ERMA has a tool that allows you to select one or more specific areas of the map by drawing a polygon around each area. Once you draw the polygon(s), you can analyze data using any of the query tools described in this section.

Creating and Deleting Polygons

Creating a Polygon

To create a shape on the map:

1. On the ERMA window, click the **Query Tools** tab.



2. Click **Create Polygon**. A message tells you that the Polygon Tool is active.
| Layers Legend Query | Tools AOI | Labels | Zoom | Download | Print |
|---|-----------------|------------|-----------|---------------|--------|
| Layers Legend Query | TOOIS ACT | Labels | 20011 | Download | Philit |
| Query Tools | | | | | |
| Step 1: Create and Ed | dit Shapes | : | | | |
| Create shapes by selectin
left clicking your mouse. d | - | | | | |
| Create Polygon | Delete Sele | ected | Dele | ete All | |
| Polygon Tool Active | | | | | |
| step z: select a Quer | y Tool: | | | | |
| Please select at least one
click, multiple selects hold
polygons are selected, ye | l down shift, i | remove se | | | |
| ERMA Layer Query b | y Polygon | tool | | | |
| | | | | | |
| Select all features that f | touch these p | olygons (i | intersect |) | |
| Select only features CC | MPLETELY | inside the | se polyg | ons (contains | 5) |

3. To make a polygon, click on a spot on the map and then move the mouse pointer to draw the polygon's first side. For each additional side, click again and draw the new side.



- 4. When the map displays the shape that you want, double-click or press any key to turn off the Polygon Tool.
- 5. Repeat steps 2 through 4 for each additional polygon.

Deleting Polygons

ERMA allows you to delete single polygons or all of the polygons on the map at once.

To delete a single polygon:

1. Click on the polygon that you want to delete. That polygon will turn (or remain) blue; all of the other polygons will turn orange.



2. Click **Delete Selected**. The selected polygon disappears from the map.

To delete all of the polygons on the map:

Click **Delete All**.

Using Polygons to View and Analyze Data

ERMA provides three tools for viewing and analyzing data using the polygon(s) that you have created.

- ERMA Layer Query by Polygon Tool. This is ERMA's native polygon query tool.
- NOAA ESI Query Tool.
- U.S. Fish and Wildlife Service IPaC Tool.

ERMA Layer Query by Polygon Tool

IMPORTANT: The ERMA Layer Query by Polygon tool returns data for ERMA-hosted layers only (i.e. Internal services such as shapefiles). It does not return data for layers that are hosted externally (i.e. External WMS feeds such as NOAA Nautical Charts or AIS vessels). The ERMA Layer Query by Polygon Tool allows you to create a subset of all active layers that are contained completely within the polygon(s) that drawn on the map, or which intersect the drawn polygons. All data for active layers is returned in a new browser window, and it can then be exported as:

- An Excel spreadsheet
- A KML (Google Earth) file
- A shapefile
- A SpatiaLite (SQLite) database

Metadata is available for each layer.

To use the ERMA Layer Query by Polygon Tool:

- 1. On the Layers tab, turn on all of the layers that you want to query.
- On the Query Tools tab, create one or more polygons using the procedure in "<u>Creating a</u> <u>Polygon</u>" on page 35.
- 3. Click on the polygon(s) that you want to use in your query. To select multiple polygons, press the SHIFT key and click on each polygon you want to include.
- 4. Select one of these query types:
 - Select all features that touch these polygons (intersect) returns data for any feature in an active ERMA-hosted layer that is wholly or partially contained in the selected polygon(s).
 - Select only features COMPLETELY inside these polygons (contains) returns data for any feature in an active ERMA-hosted layer that is wholly contained in the selected polygon(s).

Layers Legend Draw Query Tools Zoom Download Print
Query Tools
Step 1: Create and Edit Shapes:
Create shapes by selecting the Create Polygon button. Draw it on the map by left clicking your mouse. double click OR press any key to end drawing.
Create Polygon Delete Selected Delete All
Step 2: Select a Query Tool:
Please select at least one shape to run the query tools. Select with left mouse click, multiple selects hold down shift, remove select hold down control. (Blue polygons are selected, yellow are unselected.)
ERMA Layer Query by Polygon tool
Select all features that touch these polygons (intersect)
 Select only features COMPLETELY inside these polygons (contains)
Run ERMA Query By Shape
The query by shape tool allows queries against all currently enabled ERMA hosted layers (layers externally hosted are not supported by this tool.)
NOAA ESI Query tool
Run ESI Query

5. Click **Run ERMA Query By Shape**. ERMA will generate a subset of records based on your selections, and then display a window similar to the one below.

esults Summary Layer 5348 Layer 5349 I	Layer 482 Laye	r 6102			
Layer Name	Layer ID	Result Count	Comments	Metadata	Export?
Louisiana Wildlife Managed Areas	5348	1		Metadata	
Louisiana Wildlife Refuges	5349	59		Metadata	
Louisiana Public Oyster Areas	482	5		<u>Metadata</u>	V
Louisiana Coastal Wetlands Planning and Protection Act Projects	6102	28		Metadata	
Mississippi Oyster Harvesting Areas	455	0	Your polygon(s) did not intersect any of the features in this layer, you might consider a larger polygon.	<u>Metadata</u>	
Mississippi Shrimping Zones	457	0	Your polygon(s) did not intersect any of the features in this layer, you might consider a larger polygon.	<u>Metadata</u>	
Mississippi Proposed Coastal Preserves	478	0	Your polygon(s) did not intersect any of the features in this layer, you might consider a larger polygon.	<u>Metadata</u>	
Mississippi Wildlife Management Areas	477	0	Your polygon(s) did not intersect any of the features in this layer, you might consider a larger polygon.	<u>Metadata</u>	
 Apply filters to export Export all data ielect your desired extract format Excel 	Shapefile Sp	atialite Database			

The **Results Summary** tab lists each layer for which data exists, and tells you whether there is data that could not be included because it is hosted externally. Separate tabs for each layer let you examine the data in more detail.

- 6. Decide whether you want to apply filters to the exported data.
 - If you want to filter the data, select **Apply filters to export** and then continue to step 7.
 - If you want to export *all* of the data, select **Export all data** and then skip to step 14.
- 7. Clear the check box next to each layer that you *do not* want to include in the exported file. Then:
 - If you want to export *all* of the data in the remaining layers, skip to step 12.
 - If you want to export only *some* of the data for at least one of the remaining layers, continue to the next step.
- 8. Click the tab for the layer that you want to filter.
- 9. Click Enable Advanced Filters.

esults Summary	Layer 5348	ayer 5349	Layer 482	Layer 6102							
Louisiana Wile	dlife Refuges (<u>I</u>	Metadata)									
rou may drag co	lumn headings to	reorder the	m, or click o	n the arrows	() to sort	by a column.					
showing 1 to 53	of 53 records					Show 100	entries				Search a
▶ 14/15 Column	ns Shown	Enable adva	anced filters	Add to Map]						First
area_ 🔶	perimeter 🍦	nwrunit 👳	nwrname	ifwsno 🔷	tractno 🔶	status_1 🔶	status_2 🔶	type 🌲	status 🍦	hectares 🔶	acres
Search area_	Search perimete	Search nw	Search nwr	Search if	Search tr	Search stat	Search stat	Search	Search sta	Search hectares	
186594058744	3322535.90582	Delta National Wildlife Refuge	dlt	193	7	o			Ownership	12038.3022939	29747.29
62276402072.8	1741445.83876	Delta National Wildlife Refuge	dlt	193	6	0			Ownership	4017.82435613	9928.2603
12223502165	1292036.86004	Delta National Wildlife Refuge	dlt	193		ì			Inholding or Acquisition Boundary	788.61146567	

10. Click Select Filters to open a drop-down list.

Louisiana Wildlife Refuges (Metadata) You may drag column headings to reorder them, or click on the arrows () to sort by a column. Show 100 ▼ entries > 14/15 Columns Shown Add to Map ▼ Select Filters Reset all filters View Tutorial Enable all Filters nwrname if wsno ↑ tractno ↑ status_1 ↑ status_2 ↑ type ↑ status ↑ hectar Perimeter Search nw, Search nwrr, Search if Search tr, Search stati Search	
Show 100 vertries Showing 1 to 53 of 53 records Show 100 vertries I 14/15 Columns Shown Add to Map V Select Filters Reset all filters View Tutorial Enable all Filters nwrunit nwrname ifwsno tractno status_1 status_2 type status hectar perimeter Search nw Search nwr Delta National 193 7 nketares Refuge Ownership 12038.30 gid Delta National dit 193 6 0 Ownership 4017.824	
Showing 1 to 53 of 53 records Show 100 vertries ▶ 14/15 Columns Shown Add to Map ▼ Select Filters Reset all filters □ Enable all Filters nwrname of ifwsno of tractno of status_1 of status_2 of type of status of hectare □ perimeter Search nw □ search Search nw □ acres National □ hectares Refuge □ gid Delta □ shape_leng National □ witalife dit □ shape_area Ownership	
V Select Filters Reset all filters View Tutorial Enable all Filters nwrunit nwrname ifwsno tractno status_1 status_2 type status status status_2 type status status status_2 type status status status_1 status_2 type status	
Image: Search number of the search number	
perimeter Search nw Search nwrr Search if Search tr Search stat Search stat <t< th=""><th></th></t<>	
area_ Delta acres Delta hectares Wildlife gid Delta shape_leng National wildlife dlt 193 6 o Ownership 4017.824	s 👌 aci
acres Deta acres National hectares Wildlife gid Delta shape_leng National wildlife dlt 193 6 o Ownership 193 6	ctares Search
in hectares Wildlife 1193 7 0 Ownership 12038.30 in hectares Refuge Image: Comparison of the comp	
Inectares Refuge gid Delta shape_leng National dlt uidlife 0	2939 29747.
Shape_leng National dlt 193 6 o Ownership 4017.824 Wildlife	
Wildlife Wildlife Wildlife Wildlife Wildlife	
chane area	5613 9928.2
Delta Inholding	
12223502165 1292036.86004 National dlt 193 i Or 788.6114 Wildlife dlt 193 i Acquisition 788.6114	

- 11. On the drop-down, select the check box for each filter that you want to use.
- 12. Repeat steps 8 to 11 for each additional layer you want to filter.
- 13. When you are done selecting filters, return to the **Results Summary** tab.
- 14. Click the button for your desired data export format. When ERMA has finished creating the export file, a dialog box will ask you where you want to save the file.

NOAA Environmental Sensitivity Index (ESI) Tool

This tool allows you to create NOAA Environmental Sensitivity Index (ESI) maps that provide a summary of coastal resources that are at risk if an oil spill, or other hazardous incident, occurs. The summary includes biological resources, sensitive shorelines, and human-use resources.

NOTE: You do not need to turn on any ESI layers before following the steps below. You will choose the layers you want during the procedure.

To run an ESI query:

1. On the **Query Tools** tab, create one or more polygons using the procedure in "<u>Creating a</u> <u>Polygon</u>" on page 35.

Given the size of the ESI database and the time it takes to process large areas, it is a good idea to select a reasonably small area for your query (an island or section of shoreline, for example) rather than use a large region (such as an entire state).

- 2. Create one or more polygons using the procedure in "Creating a Polygon" on page 35.
- 3. Click on the polygon(s) that you want to use in your query. To select multiple polygons, press the SHIFT key and click on each polygon you want to include.
- 4. Click Run ESI Query.

Layers	Legend	Draw	Query Tools	Zoom	Download	Print	
Query	/ Tools						4
Step 1	: Create	and E	dit Shapes:				
						3 ib	
			ng the Create F nouse. double				
	awing.						
		_				_	
Creat	te Polygo	in)	Delete Sele	cted)	Delete A	AII.)	
Step 2	: Select	a Que	ry Tool:				
			shape to run t				
			cts hold down s re selected, yel			old down	
		-			inselected.)		
ERMA	Layer C	uery l	oy Polygon	tool			
Selection	t all featur	es that t	ouch these pol	vaons (ir	ntersect)		
-			MPLETELY in		· · ·	contains)	
0.000	, only load				o poljgono (
Run I	ERMA Qu	иегу Ву	Shape)				
			allows queries				
ERMA by this		ers (lay	ers externally	hosted	are not sup	ported	
-							
NUAA	ESI Qu	ery too	ы				
Run	ESI Quer	y					
ESI ma	ps provide	a sumr	nary of coastal	resource	es that are at	t risk if an	
oil spill	occurs Th	is includ	es biological re	sources	sensitive sho	orelines	

5. When the ESI Table Tool appears, select the information that you want included in the ESI report.

Layers Legend Draw	Query Tools Zoom Download Print
ESI Table Tool	
Lo	uisiana ESI
Biological	Other
Bird Habitat	Shoreline Classification (lines)
Fish Habitat	Shoreline Classification (poly)
Vegetation Habitats	ESI Index Grid
Invertebrates	Management Areas
Nests	Socioeconomic (point)
Reptiles	
Terrestrial Mammals	
Mis	sissippi ESI
Biological	Other
Bird Habitat	Shoreline Classification (lines)
Fish Habitat	 Shoreline Classification (poly)
Vegetation Habitats	ESI Index Grid
Invertebrates	Management Areas
Marine Mammals	Socioeconomic (line)
Reptiles	Socioeconomic (point)
Terrestrial Mammals	Wetlands
	eck All)] J J A S OV NV DV Immary
	Back Run ESI Tool

- 6. Select the check box for each month that you want the ESI report's data to cover. If you want data for a full year, click **Check All**.
- 7. If you want the report to include a section listing data that involves more than one of the information types that you have selected, select the **Report Area Intersection Summary** check box.
- 8. Click **Run ESI Tool**. A report is generated and then displayed in a new window similar to the one shown below.

NOTE: If your ESI query does not produce results within a few minutes, you may need to quit the ESI tool and try again using a smaller polygon, fewer ESI layers, and/or fewer months.

	I Constitution Indexe Descentees at Diale
vironmenta	al Sensitivity Index: Resources at Risk
ckaround :	and Instructions
.kground e	
- · · · · ·	
Species liste	d in Red are either listed as Threatened (T) or Endangered (E) by the State (S) or Federal government (F)
Notes: Click	on column headers to sort rows; hover or click on species link to get more information.
amanı Da	
nmary Re	sults
nmary Re	sults
	rea: 4.2 million acres
AOI total a	rea: 4.2 million acres A Bird Habitat
AOI total a LOUISIAN 18 unique s	rea: 4.2 million acres
AOI total a LOUISIAN 18 unique s scaup, Malla	rea: 4.2 million acres A Bird Habitat species: American coot, American wigeon, Blue-winged teal, Canvasback, Gadwall, Green-winged teal, Hooded merganser, Lesser
AOI total a LOUISIAN 18 unique s scaup, Malla raptor, Thr	rea: 4.2 million acres A Bird Habitat species: American coot, American wigeon, Blue-winged teal, Canvasback, Gadwall, Green-winged teal, Hooded merganser, Lesser rd, Mottled duck, Northern pintail, Northern shoveler, Piping plover, Rare shorebird, Ring-necked duck, Shorebirds, Threatened eatened shorebird
AOI total a LOUISIAN 18 unique s scaup, Malla raptor, Thr	rea: 4.2 million acres A Bird Habitat species: American coot, American wigeon, Blue-winged teal, Canvasback, Gadwall, Green-winged teal, Hooded merganser, Lesser rd, Mottled duck, Northern pintail, Northern shoveler, Piping plover, Rare shorebird, Ring-necked duck, Shorebirds, Threatened
AOI total a LOUISIAN 18 unique s scaup, Malla raptor, Thr LOUISIAN 53 unique s	rea: 4.2 million acres A Bird Habitat species: American coot, American wigeon, Blue-winged teal, Canvasback, Gadwall, Green-winged teal, Hooded merganser, Lesser rd, Mottled duck, Northern pintail, Northern shoveler, Piping plover, Rare shorebird, Ring-necked duck, Shorebirds, Threatened eatened shorebird A Fish Habitat species: Alligator gar, Atlantic croaker, Bantam sunfish, Bay anchovy, Bighead carp, Bigmouth buffalo, Black buffalo, Black crappi
AOI total a LOUISIAN 18 unique s scaup, Malla raptor, Thr LOUISIAN 53 unique s Black drum,	rea: 4.2 million acres A Bird Habitat species: American coot, American wigeon, Blue-winged teal, Canvasback, Gadwall, Green-winged teal, Hooded merganser, Lesser rd, Mottled duck, Northern pintail, Northern shoveler, Piping plover, Rare shorebird, Ring-necked duck, Shorebirds, Threatened eatened shorebird A Fish Habitat

U.S. Fish and Wildlife Service Information, Planning, and Conservation (IPaC) Tool

The Information, Planning, and Conservation (IPaC) System provides information about U.S. Fish and Wildlife Service trust resources for your selected area, including threatened and endangered species. It also provides recommended conservation measures tailored to your project activities and trust resource species.

To run an IPaC query:

- 1. Create one or more polygons using the procedure in "Creating a Polygon" on page 35.
- 2. Click on the polygon(s) that you want to use in your query. To select multiple polygons, press the SHIFT key and click on each polygon you want to include.

NOTE: IPaC does not currently support points or line segments. If you need to define your project location as a point or line segment, draw a small polygon around the location.

3. Click Run IPaC Query.

Lavers Legend Draw Query Tools Zoom Download Print
Query Tools
Step 1: Create and Edit Shapes:
Create shapes by selecting the Create Polygon button. Draw it on the map by left clicking your mouse. double click OR press any key to end drawing.
Create Polygon Delete Selected Delete All
Step 2: Select a Query Tool:
Please select at least one shape to run the query tools. Select with left mouse click, multiple selects hold down shift, remove select hold down control. (Blue polygons are selected, yellow are unselected.)
ERMA Layer Query by Polygon tool
 Select all features that touch these polygons (intersect)
 Select only features COMPLETELY inside these polygons (contains)
Run ERMA Query By Shape
The query by shape tool allows queries against all currently enabled ERMA hosted layers (layers externally hosted are not supported by this tool.)
NOAA ESI Query tool
(Run ESI Query)
ESI maps provide a summary of coastal resources that are at risk if an oil spill occurs. This includes biological resources, sensitive shorelines, and human-use resources.
U.S. Fish and Wild ife Service IPaC Tool
(Run IPa0 Query)
IPaC provides information about U.S. Fish and Wildlife Service trust resources for your selected area, including threatened and endangered species affected by the oil spill. It also provides recommended conservation measures tailored to your project activities and trust resource species.

4. After a window like the one shown below opens, follow the prompts in the IPaC System to complete your query.

NOTE: For help using the IPaC tool, go to https://ecos.fws.gov/ipac/.



DRAW TAB

The **Draw** tab allows you to draw points, lines, and polygons on the map, assign attributes, and share them with other ERMA users with the appropriate permissions. The drawings can also be made into ERMA layers in the Table of Contents and downloaded as GIS shapefiles depending on a user's permissions.

Draw Tab Overview

View list of Drawings:

Depending on your account permissions you will see up to four options to view different Drawings:

- Show All Drawings: By all users in all regions
- My Drawings: Only the Drawings you've created
- **My Drawings + Shared Drawings**: The default setting of your Drawings and any shared ones
- Shared Drawings: Only shared Drawings

							MALIN'S	-	-		1
							<u> </u>		ord L	og	out
	-	Legend			Zoom	1	Downl	oad	Print		
tunud	My Drav Show A My Drav My Drav	ll Drawin vings	Shared gs Shared	Drawings 💌	e kico I	reg	ion	Ne	w Draw	ing	
İ	Shared	1	Name					F	Region		
		~	Joaqui	n Test				a	atlantic		-
		~	Shared	Drawing				g	julfofm.		Е
		•	ztest					g	julfofm.		
		/	Observ	ed extent of sh	oreline	e oi	ling fr	. <u>c</u>	julfofm.		
		1	Initial c	ontainment m	easure	s (This i	. <u>c</u>	julfofm.		
		•	Safety 2	Safety Zone (This is a drill)				g	julfofm.		
		~	USCG	Field Ops Oil ()bserva	atio	ons 09.	🤉	ulfofm.		Ŧ

The other default setting is for a checked box to **Show Only Drawings in the [local] Region**. If you have permission to see other regions then you will be able to see those drawings when this box is unchecked.

			And a state of the		and the second s		
				Cha	nge Passv	vordĽ	ogout
Layers	Legend	Draw	Query Tools	Zoom	Download	Print	
View	Existing	g Drav	vings		Ne	w Draw	/ing)
My Dra	wings + S	Shared I	Drawings 💌				
Sho	w only dra	awings	in the gulfofm	exico re	gion		

To easily **search** the Drawings by Name or Region, type in the Search box and the Drawings table will be filtered by your search criteria.

					Cha	nge Passw	vord Logo	ut		
L	ayers	Legend	Draw	Query Tools	Zoom	Download	Print			
	View Existing Drawings New Drawing My Drawings + Shared Drawings									
	Sho	w only dra	awings	in the gulfofm	ехісо ге	gion				
E	Bird									
	Share	d	Name			F	Region			
	<	•	Bird Co	lony Nesting A	reas	Ğ	greatla			
	✓	•	Bird Co	lony Nesting A	reas	a	atlantic			

You can also **sort** the Drawings by Shared status, Name, or Region. Click on the field name and the column will automatically sort. A small black arrow will appear above the column that is being sorted.

		Change Password Logout
Layers L	egend Draw Query Tools	Zoom Download Print
View Ex	isting Drawings	New Drawing
My Drawi	ngs + Shared Drawings 💌	
📄 Show	only drawings in the gulfofme	xico region
Search		
Shared	Name	Region
Silareu	Name	Region
	/ 01-Boom-001	greatla
	/ 01-Boom-002	greatla
	/ 01-Boom-003	greatla
	/ 01-Boom-004	greatla
	/ 01-Boom-005	greatla
	/ 02-Boom-001	greatla
	✓ 02-Boom-002	greatla 👻

Creating a New Drawing

To create a new Drawing:

• Select the **Draw** tab, and click **New Drawing**. The Create New Drawing panel will appear.



NOTE: When users click the draw tab, by default the user will see My Drawings + Shared Drawings only in their region.

Layers Legend Draw Query Tools Zoom Download Print
Create New Drawing Cancel
Step 1: Name & Describe your drawing
Name Required
Description
Required
Step 2: Choose the type of drawing Polygons 🔻
Step 3: Label, name attributes, and enter attributes
Show Field Names Show Label Settings
Drawing Color #808080
Step 4: Create (or modify) a drawing feature
Draw your polygon, each click will create a single vertex in the polygon. Doul click on a point to complete the polgyon. Each feature may contain one or more polygons.

1. **Step 1: Name & Describe Your Drawing**. In the **Name** field (required) type a descriptive name for your drawing. For example:

Layers	Legend	Draw	Query Tools	Zoom	Downlo	ad Print
Edit D	rawing	1				Cancel
Step 1:	Name &	Describ	e your drawin	a		View Drawings
Name	Bird Co	lony Ne	esting Areas			(
Descrip Bird or		etina a	iona Avoid	dicturbi	ing Apri	August
			reas. Avoid hing just offs			
Step 2:	Choose t	the type	of drawing	Points	; •	

In the **Description** field (required), type of brief description of the drawing. This description will populate the metadata lite once the drawing is saved and the layer is created.

2. **Step 2: Choose the type of drawing**. In the drop-down menu you can pick points, lines, or polygons.

NOTE: Until you have added a feature you can change the geometry type. Once a feature is added, you will need to either click cancel at the top right or delete all added features to change geometry type.

3. **Step 3: Label, name attributes, and enter attributes**. Click on the **Show Fields Names** button to expand the option of naming three fields for attributes.

NOTE: By selecting Hide Field Names, these options will return to hidden.

-	ame attributes, a de Field Names			el Setting	15
Attribute F	elds				
You can set up to draw:	three attribute fie	ids that	may be	et for eac	h feature you
Attribute Name	Species			4	
Attribute Name					
Attribute Name					
	Drawing Color	#808	080		
Step 4: Create (or modify) a dra	wing fe	ature		
Draw your polygo	n, each click will c complete the polo	reate a	single ve		

Click on the **Show Label Settings** button to expand the option of customizing the labels size, color, and placement for your drawing.

Objects Test
Step 2: Choose the type of drawing Polygons V
Step 3: Label, name attributes, and enter attributes
Show Field Names Hide Label Settings
Label Settings Label Placement Automatic placement Label Color #000000 Font Size 12
Drawing Color #e856ed Step 4: Create (or modify) a drawing feature Draw your polygon, each click will create a single vertex in the polygon. Doubl click on a point to complete the polgyon. Each feature may contain one or more polygons.

NOTE: By selecting Hide Label Settings these options will return to hidden.

- 4. **Step 4: Create (or modify) a drawing feature.** Select your **Drawing Color**, click the appropriate drawing tool, and add the features by clicking the map to or typing a lat/long.
 - a. Polygon options Choose a free-drawing polygon, a square, or a circle to create. When drawing the circle it will automatically show you the radius of the feature so you can make adjustments. To draw the polygon, click the vertices on the map and double click to close the polygon when finished.
 - a. Line options Click on the line icon then use your mouse to create the vertices on the map. Double click to complete the end of the line when finished.
 - b. Point options Click on the point icon then click on the map to create a new feature. The latitude/longitude fields will automatically be populated. Alternatively, you can enter a latitude/longitude in the fields then click the **Add Point** button to have it appear on the map. You can change the latitude/longitude and click the **Update Point** button as needed.
 - Each feature you create will be listed in a table at the end of Step 4. You can edit a feature by clicking on it in the table and making changes to its size, color, etc. in the preceding steps. You can delete a feature by clicking on it then selecting the trash can symbol next to it.



5. **Step 5: Label and set attribute values.** Once the shape has been created you have the option to create a **Label** and/or **Set Attribute Values** for each feature. If you have chosen to add attribute fields you can enter in values for the attributes in this section.

NOTE: All shapes in each feature will share the same attributes. If you need different attribute values for other shapes then you will need to add another feature to enter those values.

kon hehem Princeton Dom River	Description Objects Test Step 2: Choose the type of drawing Polygons Step 3: Label, name attributes, and enter attributes Show Field Names Show Label Settings Drawing Color #e856ed Traw your polygon, each click will create a single vertex in the polygon. Double click on a point to complete the polygon. Each feature may contain one or more polygons.
Object 1 Directory Descory	Click on a row to edit a feature. Display all on map Display all on m
Wolmood Cape May Lews Reholiont Beach	(Save Drawing)

NOTE: If you have multiple features you can choose to show all of them on the map as you work or you can show only the selected feature that you are working on.

- 6. Finally, click the **Save Drawing** button to add your Drawing to the table. ERMA stores the following metadata:
 - The Drawing name.
 - The contents of the **Description** field.
 - Your user name.
 - The date / time the Drawing was created.
 - The Drawing Layer ID number

Creator Description Bird colony nesting areas. Avoid disturbing April-August. Priority for booming just offshore April - August Create Date See 24 2015 6:56:52 AM		Name				
Priority for booming just offshore April - August		Creator				
Create Date Con 24 2015 6-56-52 AM	High	escription				
Create Date Sep 24, 2015 0.50.52 AM	Sep 24, 2015 6:56:52 AM					
Layers 13714		Layers				

7. Once you click Save Drawing, your drawing will be listed in **My Drawings** under View Exisiting Drawings. If you have the permissions to do so, here you can choose to **Share** your drawing with other users who have the permissions to see shared drawings. A green check box will appear next to the Drawing name indicating it has been shared.

		New Drawing	The Description		New Drawing
My Drawings	•		My Drawings	•	
Show only di	rawings in the atlantic region		Show only draw	ings in the atlantic region	
Search			Search		
Shared	Name	Region	Shared Na	me	Region
•	Bird Colony Nesting Areas	atlantic	🖬 o Bir	d Colony Nesting Areas	atlantic
	TEST	atlantic	E TE	ST	atlantic
zoom to exte	ent) edit copy delete share	add to layers tab	(zoom to extent)	edit copy delete unshare	add to layers tab
Name Bird Colony Nesting Areas			Name	Bird Colony Nesting Areas	
Creator			Creator		
Description	sghae TEST		Description	sghae TEST	
Create Date	Jan 29, 2016 3:37:46 PM	-		Jan 29, 2016 3:37:46 PM	
	15661		Layers	15669	

NOTE: To see drawings that other users have shared, select **Shared Drawings** from the drop down.

NOTE: Drawings can only be deleted by their owner or by those with Admin permissions; a warning message will appear to ensure you want to delete your drawing.

Editing a Drawing

ERMA allows you to modify Drawings that you created. Users with Admin permissions can edit Drawings created by others.

To edit an existing Drawing:

- 1. Select the **Draw** tab, and open the drop down bar to locate one of the options:
 - **Show all Drawings** All drawings from across all ERMA regions will be displayed in a searchable table below.
 - **My Drawings** Only drawings you have created will be displayed in a searchable table below.
 - **My Drawings + Shared Drawings** Both drawings I have created and drawings that other users have shared with me will be displayed in a searchable table below.
 - **Shared Drawings** Only drawings that other users have shared with me will be displayed in a searchable table below.
- 2. Once you have found the drawing you would like to edit, **select** the row. ERMA will automatically zoom to the extent of the drawing.



3. Directly below the table you will find the **edit** button (see above), click it.

NOTE: You can only edit drawings that you own or if you have Admin permissions.

- 4. The **Edit Drawing** panel will appear. You will have the options to change, subtract, or add features to the drawing.
- 5. Based on your level of privileges, do any or all of the following:
 - Enter a new name or description, or use the Color drop-down list to change the color of the drawing's figure.
 - Change the figure's location by clicking anywhere on the figure and dragging it to the new location.
 - Change the figure's shape by clicking on any of the figure's vertexes (or on the grab point located in the middle of each side) and dragging.
 - Add additional points, lines, or polygons by selecting the appropriate tool and entering in coordinates or simply clicking on the map.

NOTE: If at any time you would like to cancel the edits that have been made to the drawing, click **Cancel** at the top right hand side of the panel.

Download Print
[7]
View Drawings
(vew blawings)
And August
g April-August. I - August
•
utes
bel Settings
Size 8 V
m Download Print
Cancel
View Drawings
rbing April-August. April - August
nts 🔻
ttributes
v Label Settings
Size 8 •
re
of longitude values to offs.
-85.173224
Display all on map
e ^
1

6. Once you have made your edits to the geometry, click **Update Point/Polygon/Line**.

NOTE: You cannot add new geometry of a different type. All drawings must consist of the same type of geometry.

7. If you would like to make edits to labels or set attribute values, do so in the last step, then click **Save Drawing**.

To Copy an Existing Drawing:

You can copy one of your own drawings or another user's drawing and edit as needed.

- 1. In the Drawings table highlight the drawing you would like to copy.
- 2. Below the table click the **Copy** button.

- 3. The **Create New Drawing** dialog panel will appear. Give a name to your copy, and edit the description, color, shape, or attributes. Click the **Save** button when finished.
- 4. The copied Drawing appears in the table. By default it is not shared. Click the **Share** button to share with other users.

					<u> </u>	ssword	
Layers L	egend	Draw Que	ry Tools	Zoom	Downlo	ad Print	
View Ex	cistin	g Drawing	S			New Drav	ving
My Drawi	ngs +	Shared Drawi	ngs 💌				
Show	only d	rawings in the	gulfofme	xico reg	ion		
Search							
Shared		Name	*			Region	
	/	01-Boom-00	1			greatla	🔺
	/	01-Boom-00	2			greatla	
	/	01-Boom-00	3			greatla	
	1	01-Boom-00	4			greatla	
	1	01-Boom-00	5			greatla	
	/	02-Boom-00	1			greatla	
	1	02-Boom-00	2			greatla	···· •
	zoom	to extent ed	it copy ad 1 to layers		ur	nshare	

Adding a Drawing to the TOC

There are three ways to add Drawings to the Layers tab, or ERMA Table of Contents:

- Add a drawing to the My Drawings folder
- Add a drawing to the Shared Drawings folder
- Add a drawing to a folder within the TOC

Each of these requires different account permissions.

To add a Drawing to the My Drawings folder:

Drawings that are not shared will appear in the My Drawings folder.

1. When you've completed your drawing click the **Add to Layers Tab** button below the drawings table. This will make the drawing appear in your **My Drawings** folder at the bottom of the TOC. No other users will be able to see these drawings.

ERMA Drawings
My Drawings
🔲 Right Whale Habitat 🍟
Shared Drawings

2. To remove this layer, click the garbage can icon next to the layer's name.

To add a Drawing to the Shared Drawings folder:

1. Drawings in the **Shared Drawings** folder must first be shared in the Draw tab. In the drawings table select the drawing you want to share and click the **Share** button. A green checkmark will appear next to the drawing's name.

Rig	ht Whale Habitat	atlantic
zoom to ext	ent edit copy delet add to layers tab	te) unshare)
Name	Right Whale Habitat	
Creator		
Description	New NMFS regulations	
Create Date	Feb 5, 2016 4:21:34 PM	
Layers	15734	

Next, click the **Add to Layers Tab** button. ERMA will take you to the **Layers** tab. At the bottom of the TOC will be a folder called **Shared Drawings** with your new layer. Currently the layer is set to Public and anyone with access to ERMA can see the shared drawing.

ERMA Drawings						
🖻 Shared Drawings						
Right Whale Habitat						
Bird Colony Nesting Areas						
🔲 Joaquin Test						

 By clicking on the Manage checkbox and the Edit button in the TOC to open the Layer Record window, this layer is now able to be edited like any other ERMA layer, such as changing its Layer Name and Privileges

			Layer Record				
layer name	Right	Right Whale Habitat					
type	drawing 💌						
folder ERMA Drawings > Shared Drawings use TOC selected folder							
data so	ource						
Right Wh	Right Whale Habitat (New NMFS regulations)						
privile	c privileges						
visibility On 💌				۲			
The visibili	The visibility setting of a layer is always the parent folder visibility and can not be overriden unless the parent folder visibility is On.						
sensitivity Public 💌							
applica	bility	site	event				
		atlantic	All	remove			
		•					
			1				

3. To remove the layer click on the **Manage** checkbox, then click on the layer's name and the **Edit** button. Scroll to the bottom of the **Layer Record** and click the **Delete** button.

To Move a Drawing into a TOC Folder

Only Shared Drawings can be moved into the ERMA TOC folders.

- 1. Click the **Manage** checkbox then select the Shared Drawing you wish to add from the **Shared Drawings** folder then click the **Edit** button.
- 2. In the Layer Record window create a new Layer Name or keep the one from the drawing name.

			Layer Record				
layer name							
type	drawing						
folder	folder Natural Resources, Habitats, & Managed Areas use TOC selected folder						
data source Right Whale Habitat (New NMFS regulations) privileges							
Visibility On The visibility setting of a layer is always the parent folder visibility and can not be overriden unless the parent folder visibility is On.							
sensitiv	ity	Public	•				
applicab	oility	site	event				
		atlantic	All	remove			
		•					

- 3. In the ERMA TOC click on the folder where you want the layer to reside.
- 4. In the Layer Record window click the **Use TOC Selected Folder** button to identify the new folder where the layer will reside.
- 5. Edit the necessary Visibility, Sensitivity, and Applicability.
- 6. Browse to a Metadata document or enter text into the Additional Information field.
- 7. Click the **Save** button and the layer will appear in the folder.

NOTE: This drawing layer is still connected to the original drawing in the Draw tab. Any edits made to the original drawing will be reflected in this layer.

8. If you want to delete the drawing from the Draw tab, it will also delete the layer in the TOC folder.

The drawing you are trying to delete currently has one or more layer(s) associated with it, if you elect to remove it, all r	elated layers will be deleted as well.
	OK Cancel

9. To delete the layer from the folder, select the layer then click the Edit button. Click the Delete button at the bottom of the Layer Record window.

Download the Layer as a Shapefile

Once your drawings have been added to the Layers tab, either as My Drawings, Shared Drawings, or in a TOC folder, you can download the layer as a GIS shapefile.

- 1. Click the checkbox next to the name of the layer or layers you want to download.
- 2. Go to the **Download** tab and click the **Download Shape Files** button.



- 3. You will be prompted to save an **ERMA.zip** file to your desktop. Select the destination and click **Save**.
- 4. Unzip the file on your desktop. You will find a folder named with the LayerID number. Inside is another zip file with the shapefile named "drawing". The attributes of your drawing will be in the shapefile DBF.



ZOOM TAB

The **Zoom** tab allows you to zoom to a particular location in any of these ways:

- By latitude and longitude
- By the place name for a geographic location.
- By NAIS ship location using a ship's MMSI number or its name.

Zooming By Latitude and Longitude (Lat/Lon)

To zoom using latitude and longitude:

- 1. In the **Zoom to Lat/Lon** field, enter a known latitude and longitude in any of these formats:
 - Decimal degrees. For example:

18.384, -65.655

• Degrees decimal minutes. For example:

66 45.8000W.)

• Degrees minutes seconds. For example:

-66 45 48

- 2. Select a zoom level from 1 (zoomed out to show the whole map) to 19 (zoomed in as close as possible).
- 3. Click Go. A black X appears on the map at the exact location you selected.



Zooming By Place Name (Place)

To zoom using a place name:

1. In the **Zoom to Place** field, enter the name of a geographic location or an address.

Hint: Enter an address in the same format that you would use with Google Maps or other popular online map application. For example:

7600 Sand Point Way NE, Seattle, WA.

Unless a street name is very common, you may be able to zoom to the correct address using only the street address.

- 2. Select a zoom level from 1 (zoomed out to show the whole map) to 19 (zoomed in as close as possible).
- 3. Click Find It! A black X appears on the map at the location you selected.



Zooming By Ship Number (Ship MMSI) or Ship Name

Users with the required privileges have access to the NAIS (Nationwide Automatic Information System) feed. This is a near real-time data feed that shows the name, location, status, and other details for most open-water vessels. If you know a particular ship's Maritime Mobile Service Identity (MMSI) number or the ship's name—or at least part of the number or name—you can use this tool to find its last received location.

To zoom by ship number:

NOTE: It is helpful, although not necessary, to turn on the NAIS layer before or after zooming to a specific ship. It enables you to see the vessel locations and to use the Identify Tool to get additional information about the ship you've zoomed to.

1. In the **Zoom to Ship MMSI** field, enter at least four digits of the known ship's 9-digit MMSI number.

If more than one ship matches the number or digits that you entered, a drop-down list appears. Select the ship that you want from the list.



- 2. Select a zoom level from 1 (zoomed out to show the whole map) to 19 (zoomed in as close as possible).
- 3. Click **Find It!** A black *X* appears on the map showing the most recent received location of the ship.



To zoom by ship name:

1. In the **Zoom to Ship MMSI** field, enter at least four characters of the known ship's name.

If more than one ship matches the name or characters that you entered, a drop-down list appears. Select the ship that you want from the list.



- 2. Select a zoom level from 1 (zoomed out to show the whole map) to 19 (zoomed in as close as possible).
- 3. Click **Find It!** A black *X* appears on the map showing the most recent received location of the ship.

NOTE: The **Zoom to** field will display the ship's MMSI, not its name. Additionally, it is helpful, although not necessary, to turn on the NAIS layer before or after zooming to a specific ship. It enables you to use the Identify Tool to get additional information about the ship you've zoomed to.



DOWNLOAD TAB

ERMA users can download any available shapefile data to their computer for use in ArcMap or other GIS application.

To download shapefile data:

- 1. On the Layers tab, turn on the layers that you want to download.
- 2. Select the **Download** tab. You'll see a list of the layers that are available for downloading. You'll also see the layers that cannot currently be downloaded, if there are any.



- 3. Click **Download Shapefiles**. You browser will then prompt you to save a ZIP file that contains the full shapefile data.
 - No legend information is downloaded unless a LYR legend file was originally uploaded with the shapefile. In this case, the LYR file will be included.
 - Multiple shapefiles are saved into a single file called erma.zip rather than as separate ZIP files.

PRINT TAB

This tab allows you to print a PDF version of the map displayed in the ERMA window. This map is suitable for saving to your desktop or emailing to others.

To print a map displayed in the ERMA window:

1. On the ERMA window, select the **Print** tab. Your map is displayed with rectangular watermarks indicating the approximate locations of the Print Logo and Legend.



2. Depending on the size of your monitor, the ERMA TOC may be blocking part of your map. If needed, click the **Hide TOC** button (located in the lower-right corner of the panel) to hide the Print panel and get a full view of what the printed map will look like. You can move the map around until what appear on the screen matches what you want to print. Click the **Show TOC** button when you are done.



- 3. Under Paper Size, select the size of the paper you will print the map on, and the orientation of the map image on the paper.
- 4. In your web browser, open the print settings and make sure that the paper size and orientation match what you have selected on ERMA's **Print** tab.
- 5. Click **Print PDF Map**. ERMA creates a printable PDF file and sends it to your computer. If you open the PDF file, you'll see that the map includes your name and a date/time stamp in the lower-left corner.

